
1 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Undocumented Motorist Safety & Insurance Task Force 

Thursday, June 19, 2016 

10:00a.m. – 12:00p.m. 

Tatnall Building, Room 112, Dover, DE 

 

Meeting Attendance 

Task Force Members: 

Present:    E-mail:    Phone: 

Senator Bryan Townsend  Bryan.Townsend@state.de.us  302-744-4165 

Senator Robert Marshall  Robert.Marshall@state.de.us  302-744-4168 

Chief William Bryson   William.Bryson@cj.state.de.us 302-687-2881 

Director Scott Vien   Scott.Vien@state.de.us   302-744-2730 

Javier Torrijos    DHC_Chair@state.de.us  302-894-6329 

Rosario Calvachi-Mateyko  Charitocw@aol.com   717-951-0905 

Major Melissa Zebley   Melissa.Zebley@state.de.us  302-739-5911 

Deborah Gottschalk, Esq.   Deborah.Gottschalk@state.de.us 302-255-9038 

Jose Somalo    jose.somalo@gmail.com  302-854-0240 

Darlene Battle    dbattle@delaca.org   302-588-1782 

Deputy AG Danielle Brennan  Danielle.Brennan@state.de.us 302-577-8894 

 

Absent: 

Representative Andria Bennett Andria.Bennett@state.de.us  302-744-4351 

Senator Brian Pettyjohn  Brian.Pettyjohn@state.de.us  302-744-4048 

Representative Helene Keeley Helene.Keeley@state.de.us  302-744-4351 

Representative Joseph Miro  Joseph.Miro@state.de.us  302-744-4171 

Drew Fennell, Esq.   Drew.Fennell@state.de.us  302-744-4101 

Ana Velasquez   avelasquez@thelatincenter.org 302-655-7338x7696 

Pastor Jeremias Rojas   cryingprophet@verizon.net  302-562-4597 

Matthew Heckels   Matthew@destatehousing.com 302-739-4263 

Keyla Rivero-Rodriguez  Keyla.Rivero-Rodriguez@state.de.us 302-857-5873 

Judy Diogo    jdiogo@cdcc.net   302-734-7513 

Claudia Peña Porretti   cporretti@laesperanza.org  302-854-9262x16 

Raymond Holcomb   Raymond.Holcomb@state.de.us 302-744-2678 

Catherine Rankin   Catherine.Rankin@statefarm.com 302-529-0556 

Karen Weldin Stewart   Karen.Stewart@state.de.us  302-674-7300 

New Castle County Chamber of Commerce   -N/A 

Greater Georgetown Chamber of Commerce  -N/A 

Delmarva Poultry Industry    -N/A 

 

Staff: 
Michelle Zdeb    Michelle.Zdeb@state.de.us  302-744-4059 

Dick Carter    Dick.Carter@state.de.us  302-744-4155 

Laura Wisniewski   Laura.Wisniewski@state.de.us 302-744-4182 

 

mailto:Bryan.Townsend@state.de.us
mailto:Robert.Marshall@state.de.us
mailto:William.Bryson@cj.state.de.us
mailto:Scott.Vien@state.de.us
mailto:DHC_Chair@state.de.us
mailto:Charitocw@aol.com
mailto:Melissa.Zebley@state.de.us
mailto:Deborah.Gottschalk@state.de.us
mailto:jose.somalo@gmail.com
mailto:dbattle@delaca.org
mailto:Danielle.Brennan@state.de.us
mailto:Andria.Bennett@state.de.us
mailto:Brian.Pettyjohn@state.de.us
mailto:Helene.Keeley@state.de.us
mailto:Joseph.Miro@state.de.us
mailto:Drew.Fennel@state.de.us
mailto:avelasquez@thelatincenter.org
mailto:cryingprophet@verizon.net
mailto:Matthew@destatehousing.com
mailto:Keyla.Rivero-Rodriguez@state.de.us
mailto:jdiogo@cdcc.net
mailto:cporretti@laesperanza.org
mailto:Raymond.Holcomb@state.de.us
mailto:Catherine.Rankin@statefarm.com
mailto:Karen.Stewart@state.de.us
mailto:Michelle.Zdeb@state.de.us
mailto:Dick.Carter@state.de.us
mailto:Laura.Wisniewski@state.de.us


2 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Attendees:    Organization:   Phone: 

Ryan Tack-Hooper   ACLU     N/A 

Di’Yonnce Tribbet   N/A     N/A 

Rhonda West    Department of Insurance  302-674-7579 

Lisa Seymour    Delaware State Police   302-672-5322 

John Laird Jr.     Delaware State Police   302-739-5990 

Keri Rapa    Delaware Senate Minority Staff 302-744-4256  

  

INTRODUCTIONS  

Senator Townsend, co-chair, brought the meeting to order at 12:19 p.m. The Senator then 

thanked members of the Task Force and the public for attending the reconvening of the 

Undocumented Motorist Safety & Insurance Task Force at the direction of SA1 (Marshall) to SB 

59 (Townsend).  

Overview of SA 1 (Marshall) to SB 59 (Townsend): Calling for a Reconvening of SCR 36 

Synopsis: This amendment creates a requirement for the reconvening of the task force to review 

and analyze the implementation of the driving privilege card and to determine if 

recommendations should be made to the General Assembly.  

PRESENTATION BY DELAWARE STATE POLICE  

Senator Townsend introduced Task Force member, Major Melissa Zebley, who presented the 

Delaware State Police (DSP) findings of the results of the implementation of the undocumented 

motorist legislation to date.   

Please see the presentation below provided from the DSP:  

 



3 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



4 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



5 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



6 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

 



7 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

 

Number of Applicants Processed 

 

 

  



8 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Major Melissa Zebley provided the above document, Number of Applicants Processed, for easy 

viewing during the presentation since it was not legible on the slide.  

Major Zebley noted, in addition to the presentation, that the primary reason undocumented 

citizens who apply for driver privilege cards are being denied is because the name and date of 

birth does not match the records that may be on file. She then opened the floor for questions.   

Javier Torrijos, Chair of the Delaware Hispanic Commission, acknowledged the work that the 

State Police have been doing to reach out to the community. Mr. Torrijos stated that often, when 

people call to inquire about the program, they encountered language barriers and/or were unable 

to get through the line.  

Major Zebley apologized for those inconveniences and stated that these problems occurred 

primarily in January when the program was first rolled out.  She said that the Department has 

addressed these issues since. 

Rosario Calvachi-Mateyko, Vice Chair of the Delaware Hispanic Commission, asked what the 

Department is doing to help inform police leadership and employees about the program and the 

services that are available.   

Major Zebley stated that they have educated every trooper in the State and that police have been 

trained to know what the point of contact is.  

Chief William Bryson , Chair of the Delaware Police Chiefs’ Council, stated at the present time, 

not all individual departments have a bilingual employee, which may cause problems on the 

street level for this program.  

 

PRESENTATION BY DELAWARE DIVISION OF MOTOR VEHICLES  

Senator Townsend turned the floor to the next presenter and introduced Task Force member, 

Scott Vien, Director of the Delaware Division of Motor Vehicles (DMV).  

Please see the presentation below provided from the DMV:  



9 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Please see the PowerPoint Slides below



10 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



11 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



12 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



13 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



14 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



15 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



16 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 



17 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

 

 



18 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Director Scott Vien noted that the statistics that were provided in the presentation represent 

people’s first attempt at obtaining a driving privilege card.   

Director Vien provided additional statistics at the closing of the presentation from the Division of 

Revenue, stating that 3,892 certificates of filing compliance were issued. He further noted there 

were a total of 200 walk-ins in the Dover location, 300 walk-ins in Georgetown, and 500 walk-

ins in Wilmington. The rest of the appointments were made online.  He opened the floor for 

questions. 

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko asked if they have referred people to Dover, since the DMV facility there 

does not have as many appointments as those in New Castle and Sussex Counties.  

Director Vien clarified that there is availability at all DMV locations. He clarified that there just 

have not been many appointments requested for the Dover location. The Director noted that 

when people call in they are calling in to a central line that can make appointments for any 

location statewide.   

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko shared her experience of applying for a driver’s license, noting that it was 

difficult for her to learn the English words for each of the different types of road signs.  

Director Vien explained that it is a statutory requirement that the person know what the signs 

mean in English. The Director noted that in order for someone to take the knowledge test, they 

must pass a sign test in English first.  

Darlene Battle, Delaware Alliance for Community Advancement, asked if people who are 

missing documents are being referred to organizations that can assist them in obtaining this 

information.   

Director Vien stated that it is up to the individual when filling out their application whether or 

not to seek the help from an organization.  He noted that when they call DMV, the agency will 

refer them to those organizations. If they are missing documents, a DMV representative will tell 

them where to go to obtain them. Director Vien further noted that many problems arise from the 

requirement that applicants provide two pieces of mail showing their current address, because 

this is sometimes difficult for them to find.  

Ms. Battle thanked the Director for his answer and stated that it is unfortunate organizations that 

can provide assistance are not able to connect with applicants before they apply.  She said that 

many of them will not come back for a second attempt because of the difficulties acquiring the 

necessary documents or because they are unable to schedule a translator to accompany them to 

the DMV.   

Director Vien stated this is the main reason why DMV personnel have been going into the 

communities to educate as many people as they can. He noted that those who have had problems 

is a small number compared to the total number of applicants, so that while it is an area in need 



19 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

of improvement, it is important to realize that more people are being approved for the privilege 

cards than are being denied.  

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko confirmed that many people in the community have been referring 

friends and family members to the different organizations that can provide assistance in 

gathering the required documents.  

José Somalo, Mid-Atlantic Hispanic Chamber of Commerce, noted that the translation of 

explanatory documents has been a big concern, and the Hispanic community appreciates that the 

DMV has taken this seriously. Mr. Somalo then asked if training with employees includes a 

sensitivity training to teach DMV personnel how to interact with undocumented individuals.  

Director Vien stated that every DMV employee goes through a diversity and sensitivity training 

course every two years and added that the State Human Relations Commission has done training 

for every single DMV location within the State. The Director noted that each DMV has a counter 

dedicated for appointments with undocumented applicants and that each DMV will maintain 

consistency with who is working this counter.  

Mr. Torrijos thanked the Task Force and the organizations. He noted that the translation that has 

been completed in the DMV Driving Privilege Card handout is very good and that the Delaware 

Hispanic Commission hopes to see the same quality of translation in the driver manual and 

driver’s test documents.  

Director Vien noted that DMV employees worked on the pamphlet referenced.  Mr. Vien then 

noted that translation is always a challenge.  For instance, in the preparation of the Spanish 

version of the driver’s test document the DMV initially was at the mercy of the vendor, but since 

the agency has been getting so much feedback about the test, DMV personnel have been able to 

carry out internal reviews on how to help fix language problems.  

Mr. Torrijos noted that, in the end, no matter what the translation may be, there is never going to 

be 100 percent perfection because of the language variations within the Hispanic community.  

Please see below for the DMV Driving Privilege Card pamphlet: 



20 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

 

 



21 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Please see below the Spanish translated version of the DMV Driving Privilege Card pamphlet: 

 

 



22 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

GROUP DISCUSSION 

Senator Townsend thanked the different departments for their hard work in making the program 

run smoothly. The Senator than asked if the drop in numbers in recent months is a reflection of 

increased seasonal activity within the agricultural community or if there are other factors driving 

this drop off in the number of applicants.   

 

Mr. Somalo stated that the numbers are good and encouraging to the general community. He 

noted that when the program first began, there were concerns that people would not apply 

because of fears that their personal information might be passed on to the federal government.  

 

Mr. Somalo said that he has personal friends who are happy and excited that they have been 

given the opportunity to obtain driving privilege cards. There are still some people in the 

community who are nervous about the possibility of deportation. Mr. Somalo noted if efforts 

continue to educate the community these fears should subside.  

 

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko said that you can see in the numbers when word got out among people in 

the community about the program and that the number of applicants has slowed down because 

those who needed the cards have gotten them.  Agreeing with Mr. Somalo that some individuals 

still fear the federal government, she further noted that there have been 40,000 Mexican 

passports, alone, issued to Delaware residents.  

 

Director Vien noted that there has been a small drop off but believes we will continue to see 

people applying for the privilege cards.  

 

Mr. Torrijos asked Director Vien if he knew how the Delaware numbers compared to those in 

other states that have implemented driving privilege card programs. 

 

Director Vien responded that it would be better to do a percentage comparison and the DMV has 

not done that analysis yet because most of the states that have enacted this type of legislation are 

substantially larger than Delaware.  

 

Senator Townsend noted that it would be interesting to see if there have been drop-offs in other 

jurisdictions regarding the fear of federal laws.  

 

Director Vien stated that in Maryland a leveling off of applications happened after the first six 

months of that state’s program.  

 

Senator Townsend stated that he expects a leveling off but is curious what the trend would be.  

He added that he would like to see an evaluation of whether the significant drop off is in regards 

to concerns about the federal government.  

 

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko noted that Delaware police are extremely nice when dealing with this 

issue.  She compared this experience with what is happening in Maryland, where, she said, they 

target Latino drivers to make sure that they have their driving privilege cards. 

 



23 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Senator Townsend said there are continuing expressions of gratitude for the manner in which 

Delaware law enforcement has handled this program.  

 

Chief Bryson thanked the Task Force for their support and stated that they try to be as 

welcoming as possible.  

 

Ms. Battle noted that the increase in applicants in January and February will most likely continue 

to occur since many may start to file their taxes. She also stressed that her organization and 

others continue to educate undocumented citizens about “scam companies” that seek to charge 

them large fees for providing services which are available to them for free from reputable 

organizations.   

 

Senator Townsend asked if there is any prosecution for those who are carrying out these scams.  

 

Director Vien said there is not really much the DMV can do about the activities of the company 

cited by Ms. Battle. He said that while the misrepresentations they are making are objectionable, 

their activities may not be illegal.  

 

Senator Townsend asked Task Force member and Deputy Attorney General, Danielle Brennan, if 

there is any way the State could see what the standards are for these crimes and if there are any 

consumer protections laws that can help avoid these practices.  

 

Deputy Attorney General Brennan said that she will follow up with the Division of Consumer 

Protection to see what, if any, charges might be made in cases like these.  

 

Mr. Torrijos asked if the driving privilege card program has resulted in any changes to the auto 

insurance policies of those obtaining the cards.  

 

Rhonda West, Department of Insurance, stated that there have been no complaints to her agency.  

 

Ms. Battle clarified that people were always able to purchase insurance, but with driving 

privilege cards, they can now go back and request a new rate.   

 

Ms. West stated that they would have to go back and ask for an adjustment in their rate.   

 

Ms. Battle stated she would be interested in seeing how many people have received a new rate.  

 

Ms. West clarified that they would not have this information unless it was reported to them.  

 

Ms. Battle said that a friend of hers works for State Farm Insurance and has noticed an increase 

in the number of undocumented persons applying for insurance since the new program began.  

 

Senator Townsend noted that he has heard auto sales have increased in the Georgetown area and 

that some insurance agencies have hired additional staff.  He said that the program has brought a 

number of ripple effects in the economy.  

 



24 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Ms. West noted that she could look into seeing if there was any feedback that could be reported.  

 

Ms. Calvachi-Mateyko stated that she is excited to see the additional state revenue the program 

has generated. She noted that it shows that if you benefit one community, it benefits all 

communities.  

 

Mr. Torrijos joked that Director Vien’s Spanish has gotten better since the program started.   

*All Laughed* 

 

Senator Townsend applauded Director Vien’s efforts on this program.   

 

Ms. Battle noted that her Asian clients are in a different situation than Hispanics and asked Mr. 

Vien what she should tell clients who can provide Social Security cards and a driver’s license 

and now want to obtain a driver privilege card.  

 

Director Vien responded that the process is the same for persons of all ethnic groups.  

 

Dick Carter, Senate Majority Project Director, asked into what languages the state driving 

manual has been translated. 

 

Director Vien responded that it has been translated into Spanish, Creole, Chinese, and Korean, in 

addition to English, and that the decision as to which languages to do translations is based on 

census data.  

 

Ms. Battle asked if it was possible for her organization to stand outside the DMV and do a short 

survey about the driving privilege card and see how their experience was.  

 

Senator Townsend asked if there were any further comments or questions from the Task Force 

since this was their last time meeting to evaluate the program. Noting there seemed to be good 

working relationships with this program, which was really great to see, the Senator said it is 

important to have ongoing advocacy from all of the stakeholders.  

 

Mr. Torrijos thanked the Task Force for the improvement of the program and all of the help the 

leadership and legislative members have given. Mr. Torrijos noted that this is a great example of 

how government can work and impact a lot of people.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Senator Townsend asked if there was public comment. The Senator than acknowledge Ryan 

Tack-Hooper of the American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU).  

Ryan Tack-Hooper, from the public with ACLU, thanked the presenters for all of their 

information. He then asked who has access to the database and how they have access. Mr. Tack-

Hooper used the example of a Milton police officer who wants to go through this data.  Would 

the officer have to make a written request or can he just go through it? 



25 
 

Minutes prepared by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Laura Wisniewski, Legislative Fellow.  

 

Chief Bryson said that unless police officers have valid reasons to look through this data, they 

cannot view it.  If they attempt to do so without proper authorization, they would lose their 

privilege to access this information.  

Major Zebley stated that they can only access this data if they are running a check on someone 

during a traffic stop or accident.  

Mr. Tack-Hooper than asked if a federal official wanted to find people using this data, can they?  

Director Vien answered no; the DMV would not be handing over information to the Federal 

database.  

CLOSING REMARKS  

Senator Townsend thanked the Task Force members for reconvening.  He further thanked 

everyone for their hard work and noted he is glad to see this program is working so well.  

The meeting was adjourned at 1:28 p.m.  


